
AGENDA FOR

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact:: Keren Murphy
Direct Line: 0161 2535130
E-mail: k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : J Black, S Briggs, D Jones, A Matthews, 
A Quinn, S Southworth, Y Wright, R Skillen, C Preston, E 
O'Brien, J Harris, R Hodkinson and M D'Albert

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 15 December 2015

Place: Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

The Head of Development Management will brief the 
Committee on any changes made to the Planning 
Applications to be considered since the issue of the 
Agenda.  This information will be circulated to 
Members and made available to the public on the 
Council’s Website on the day of the meeting.

Notes: Food will be available from 5.00 pm (Balcony Bar).
Pre-meeting briefing/virtual site visits at 5.45 pm 
(Lancaster Room).
Details of site visits/Member training will be circulated 
separately for the information of Members and 
Officers.

Public Document Pack



The Agenda and Reports for the meeting are attached.

The Agenda and Reports are available on the Council’s Intranet for 
Councillors and Officers and on the Council’s Website at 
www.bury.gov.uk – Council and Democracy.

Yours sincerely

MIKE OWEN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

http://www.bury.gov.uk/


AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if 
so, to formally declare that interest.

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 NOVEMBER, 2015  (Pages 1 
- 6)

4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 7 - 62)

5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 63 - 72)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent delegated 
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee held on 24 November, 2015.

6  PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 73 - 76)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent planning 
appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
held on 24 November, 2015.

7  SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE  (Pages 77 - 86)

A report from the Assistant Director (Localities) providing an update  on 
the most recent changes made to the Register of Sites of Biological 
Importance.

8  PLANNING OUTCOMES REPORT  (Pages 87 - 94)

A report from the Head of Development Management providing a 
summary on the visits undertaken and analysis provided by Members on 
the Outcomes Tour held in August, 2015.

9  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



347

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 24 November, 2015

Present: Councillor S Southworth (In the Chair) 
Councillors J Black, S Briggs, M D’Albert, J Harris, R 
Hodkinson, D Jones, E O’Brien, C Preston, A Quinn and 
Y Wright

Public attendance: 22 members of the public were in attendance 

Apologies for 
absence: Councillors  Matthews and Skillen

_____________________________________________________________________

PCC.499 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor D’Albert declared a personal interest in respect of Planning 
Application 59311.  Councillor D’Albert lives in a neighbouring property to 
the one being considered as part of this application.  Councillor Susan 
Southworth declared prejudicial interest in respect of Planning Application 
59351.  Councillor Southworth is the applicant in relation to this particular 
planning application.

PCC.500      MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 October, 2015 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PCC.501 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to the 
applications for planning permission.  Supplementary information was also 
submitted in respect of application numbers: 58832; 58848; 59217; 
59238; 59266; 59311and 59312.

The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in 
respect of the applications submitted.  This was limited to three minutes 
for each speaker. 

Councillor  Gartside  spoke as a ward representative in respect of planning 
application 58848. Councillor Adams spoke as a ward representative in 
respect of planning application 59397.

Prior to the Committee meeting, Site Visits had taken place in relation to 
Planning Application 58918 and 58848.

Delegated decisions:

1. That Approval be given to the following applications in accordance with 
the reasons put forward by the Head of Development Management in the 
report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the 
conditions included:

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 24 November 2015 

58848  Site of former Berry’s Garden Centre, Turton Road, 
Tottington, Bury – Ramsbottom & Tottington – Tottington Ward
Erection of 1 no. Dwelling

The decision to Approve with Conditions is subject to the addition of 
the following condition:-

Condition 20: No development shall commence unless and until details of 
any proposed boundary treatments have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary details 
only shall be implemented.
Reason. Information not supplied at application stage, in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Bury Unitary Development plan Policies H2/2 - 
The Layout of New Residential Development, EN1/1 - Visual Amenity, 
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and OL7/2 - West Pennine Moors

59161  Unit 1, Yarwood Street, Bury – Bury East Ward
Change of use of ground/first floor from shop/workshop to community 
centre (Class D1); Two storey extension at front/side; External alterations 
to include new entrance and roller shutters; Alterations to form car park

59217  Site of former garage colony off Mosley Street/Hampson 
Fold, Radcliffe, Manchester – Whitefield & Unsworth – Pilkington 
Park Ward
Rebuilding and alterations to form ancillary residential annex for use as 
dependent person accommodation (resubmission)

59238  5 Bleakley Street, Whitefield, Manchester – Whitefield & 
Unsworth – Pilkington Park Ward
Rebuidling and alterations to from ancillary residential annex for use as 
dependent person accommodation (resubmission)

The decision to Approve with Conditions is subject to the amendment 
to the wording of Condition 5, to read as follows:-

Condition 5:  Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or as 
subsequently amended, no window or door openings shall be inserted or 
enlarged within the terms of Part 1, Class E of the Order.
Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the occupants of 
neighbouring properties pursuant to UDP Policy H2/3-Extensions and 
Alterations and SPD6 Policy Guidance Note 6: Alterations & Extensions.
 
59266  Unit F Bornmore Industrial Estate, Leigh Lane, Bury – Bury 
West – Elton Ward
Retrospective application for vehicle dismantling and recycling

Page 2



Planning Control Committee, 24 November 2015 

59279  Bury Grammar School Playing Fields, Buckley Wells, Bury – 
Bury East – Redvales Ward
Erection of 2.4 m high mesh panel fence to the west and south boundary 
of Buckley Wells playing fields

59311  Land between 7 & 11 Prestwich Park Road South, 
Prestwich, Manchester – Prestwich – St Mary’s Ward
Erection of detached dwelling with new access onto Prestwich Park Road 
South

59351  Oxford Mews, 79 Oxford Street, Bury – Bury East Ward
Single storey extensions at rear

(Note:  Prior to consideration of this application, Councillor Susan 
Southworth proposed that Councillor Briggs stand in as Chair of the 
Committee, Councillor Southworth having declared a prejudicial interest.  
The Committee supported the proposal and Councillor Briggs took on the 
role of Chair.  Councillor Southworth left the room during consideration of 
this application and resumed her role as Chair of the Committee following 
consideration of the application).

59312   609-621 Rochdale Old Road, Bury – Bury East Ward
3 No. Internally illuminated canopy fascia signs; 6.5mhigh double sided 
internally illuminated free standing sign (retrospective)

(Note:  Councillor Jones proposed that the decision on the application be 
split – to approve the illumination of signs A and B, as referred to in the 
Officer report and refuse the illumination of sign C for the following 
reason, on “the adverse impact on the visual amenity of the neighbouring 
property”. The proposal was seconded by Councillor Briggs and the 
Committee unanimously voted in favour of this split decision).

2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in 
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Head of Development 
Management in the report and supplementary information submitted and 
subject to the conditions included:

58832    The Hearth of the Ram, 13 Peel Brow, Ramsbottom, Bury 
– Ramsbottom & Tottington Ward – Ramsbottom Ward
Extension to existing car park and landscaping of land adjacent 

(Note: In relation to the Officer report on this application, Paragraph 7, 
Page 14 of the report should have read as follows:-

Page 3



Planning Control Committee, 24 November 2015 

“...it is considered that the proposed development would preserve the 
character of the Conservation Area in compliance with EN2/1 and 
EN2/2”).

58918  Land adjacent to 15 Prestfield Road, Whitefield, 
Manchester – Whitefield & Unsworth – Besses Ward
Erection of 33 no. Apartments in 2,3 & 4 storey blocks with associated 
parking and a detached dwelinghouse

3. That the following application be Deferred for a site visit and be 
considered at the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee:-

59357  88 Hollins Lane, Bury – Whitefield & Unsworth – Unsworth 
Ward

Demolition of linked detached garage and outbuilding and erection of 
detached dwelling

(Note:  Prior to consideration of the application, Councillor Jones proposed 
that this application be deferred subject to a site visit.  This proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Briggs.  The Committee voted in favour of this 
proposal).

PCC.502 DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all recent 
Planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers.  

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PCC.503 PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted 
listing all recent Planning Appeal decisions since the last meeting of the 
Planning Control Committee.
  
Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

Page 4



Planning Control Committee, 24 November 2015 

PCC.504 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER CONFIRMATION

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted 
providing confirmation of a temporary tree preservation order currently 
made on Walshaw Hall and cartilage, Bradshaw Road, Walshaw (Order 
No.338).  The Committee were requested to confirm, without 
modifications, the extant temporary Tree Preservation Order designated 
as Land at Walshaw Hall.

Delegated decision:

That the Committee confirm, without modifications, the extant temporary 
Tree Preservation Order designated as Land at Walshaw Hall.

CHAIR
COUNCILLOR SUSAN SOUTHWORTH

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.20 pm)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 
Title 
 

 
Planning Applications 

To: 
 

Planning Control Committee 

On: 
 

15 December 2015 

By: 
 

Development Manager 

Status: 
 

For Publication 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the 
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved. 
 
My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports. 
 
This report has the following implications 
 
Township Forum/ Ward: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Policy: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Resources: 
 

Not generally applicable. 

Equality Act 2010:  All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and 
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for: 
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and person who do not share it; 
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.    
    
Human Rights:  All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the 
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments. 
 
Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a 
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include 
a person's home, and other land and business assets. 
 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and 
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon 
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is 
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the 
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
 
 
Development Manager 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith. 
2. Certificates relating to the ownership. 
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties. 
4. Responses from Consultees. 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT 
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE. 
 

Page 8



 
01  Township Forum - Ward:  Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington App No.   59216 
 
  Location: Land at rear of Victoria Street/Claybank Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AG 
  Proposal: Outline application for residential development (all matters reserved) 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses App No.   59293 
 
  Location: 1/3 Moss Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8DY 
  Proposal: Change of use from Class A1 (shop) to Class A3 (restaurants & cafes); 

external alterations including new shop front 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No.   59357 
 
  Location: 88 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8AH 
  Proposal: Demolition of link detached garage and outbuilding and erection of 

detached dwelling 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
04  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No.   59382 
 
  Location: The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury, BL9 8LT 
  Proposal: Variation of condition no. 2 of planning permisison 56860 (21 no. 

dwellings) to amend the planning layout/position of of plots 15, 16,17, 18 
 

  Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Page 9



  
 
Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington Item   01 

 
Applicant: Messrs Ballard / Long 
 
Location: Land at rear of Victoria Street/Claybank Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AG 

 
Proposal: Outline application for residential development (all matters reserved) 
 
Application Ref:   59216/Outline Planning 

Permission 
Target Date:  16/12/2015 

 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
The Development Manager has recommended a site visit take place before the 
Planning  
Control Committee Meeting 
Description 
The application site comprises a piece of land between the row of two storey terraced 
houses on Victoria Street to the east and the detached houses on Claybank Drive to the 
west. The site is rectangular in shape and covers 0.28ha in total. There are trees along the 
and otherwise is flat and level with the surrounding houses. The site is greenfield but not 
within the Green Belt, which together with the West Pennine Moors designation, lies to the 
south and further to the north, across Turton Road. There is a Public Right of Way running 
from Claybank Drive, down the northern boundary to  
 
The site, which had been allotments, was included in the red edged site when the 
application (26311/91) for the residential estate to the west was considered by the Local 
Planning Authority in 1991. After consideration and following a site visit by the Planning 
Control Committee at that time, the new build on this area (as part of the larger site) was 
omitted to create an open space/buffer between the new houses and properties on Victoria 
Street and the land has since remained undeveloped. Some of the residents on Victoria 
Street have extended their garden areas into the site and the land now comprises an 
attractive green area. 
 
The application is seeking outline planning permission with all matters (access, siting, 
appearance and landscaping) reserved for future approval.  
 
Although all matters are reserved for future approval, the application included an indicative 
plan showing three large detached houses with double garages accessed of a road running 
from Claybank Drive, down the northern boundary and across the back of the terraced 
houses fronting Victoria Street. It is stated in the application that this plan is for illustrative 
purposes only and should not be considered for approval. 
 
Submitted as part of the planning application is a Planing Statement setting out the reasons 
why the proposal should be approved. In summary these are: 
• Need for high quality housing; 
• Site is within the development limits of Tottington; 
• NPPF indicates the need to boost the supply of housing. 
• Site is sustainable; 
• Site does not have specific landscape/historical or ecological protection. 
• Job creation; 
• increased population would sustain and support the local economy and key services. 
 
The  Design and Access Statement, also submitted, focuses on the detailed layout and 
design indicated in the 'Indicative Plan'. However it is specifically stated in the application 
that this plan is not submitted for approval at this stage.  

Page 10



 
Other documents submitted are an ecological Appraisal, a Stage 1 Arboricultural Report 
and Tree Constraints Plan and a Preliminary Contamination Risk Assessment.  
 
The Ecological Appraisal concludes that the site's potential to support protected species is 
low however , consideration should be given to the potential presence of breeding birds and 
slow worm prior to site clearance and the potential for bats  to be roosting in the terraced 
houses on Victoria Street.  
 
The Arboricultural Report concludes that the majority of trees on the site are of poor quality 
and should not influence development. Some trees could be retained but all are considered 
to be replaceable, if required. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
01416/E - Pre-application enquiry for Residential development - Enquiry completed 
02/12/2013 
26734 - Residential Development - 60 Dwellings - Refused 23/01/92 on grounds that the 
development was not in accordance with policy 10.7 of the Tottington Area Local Plan which 
showed the site as within an area where it is intended that the existing predominant use and 
character are expected to remain for the most part undisturbed. 
26311/91 - 53 Dwellings  - Approved 28/11/91. The development within the area, the 
subject of the current application, was omitted from the final approved scheme. 
 
Publicity 
The following 43 properties surrounding the site were notified by letters dated 21/10/15. 
2-54(even) Victoria Street 
33, 37, 41, 43, 56 - 66(even) Claybank Drive 
67-75 Turton Road 
39 Claybank Drive was notified by letter dated 10/11/15. 
 
33 representations and a '51 name' petition objecting to the proposal received from the 
occupiers of 2-20, 28-38, 50 and 54 (evens) Victoria Street, 15, 25, 29, 32, 34, 39, 46, 48, 
52, 56, 60, 62, 66, Claybank Drive, 4, 7 Primrose Bank, 67, 73, 75 Turton Road, 59 Horbury 
Drive, 34 Thornfield Road, Cllr Keeley (Tottington, Walshaw and Affetside) 
 
The objections are summarised below: 
• The proposal is contrary to UDP policies and guidance. 
• The site is an undeveloped green field with very high amenity value and should remain 

as such. 
• Since 1930 the land was used as allotments/gardens by the residents of Victoria Street. 

In 1991 planning permission was granted for housing as part of the housing estate to be 
built on the west side of this land. A number of Victoria Street residents objected to the 
inclusion of the land within the housing site on the grounds that it had not been included 
in the previous outline planning permission site, and that the land should remain open 
as a 'breathing space' between the houses and the Victoria Street houses, and that if 
the land were not retained the new houses would overlook and overshadow Victoria 
Street residents. 

• The proposal would have a detrimental impact on residential amenity. 
• The development would introduce noise and disturbance at the rear of the properties on 

Victoria Street. 
• The proposed houses would be very close to existing houses and have an overbearing 

and overshadowing effect. 
• Existing neighbours would be overlooked, particularly as they are higher up than those 

properties on Victoria Street. 
• The proposed houses would be overlooked by houses on either side of the site.  
• Building houses and a road would destroy the distinctive character of the area. 
• Loss of private garden areas. 
• The land has been used by some residents as garden ground/allotments for many years 

and there are issues relating to adverse possession. 
Page 11



• Development on this land would have a severe and detrimental impact on the existing 
trees, shrubs and associated wildlife including birds and bats. 

• Serious security concerns over the layout and the creation of a narrow passageway and 
wall behind houses on Victoria Street. 

• Hazards to road users during construction, particularly on Claybank Drive. 
• All natural landscape features would disappear. 
• Concerns relating to the gradient of the land in poor weather conditions. 
• Major excavation of the site may lead to the removal of trees on the boundary. 
• The development would be contrary to Humans Rights (of the existing residents). 
 
Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control 
Committee.  
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection in principle. 
Drainage Section - No objection in principle. 
Environmental Health - No objection in principle. 
United Utilities - No comment. 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection in principle. 
Greater Manchester Police - No objection in principle.  
Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station - No comment. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN3 Archaeology 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
H2/6 Garden and Backland Development 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Policy - H1/2 - Further Housing Development states that the Council will have regard to the 
following factors when assessing proposals for housing development; 
a) the need to direct development towards the urban area; 
b) the availability of infrastructure;  
c) the need to avoid the release of peripheral open land, unless this can be shown to be 
consistent with urban regeneration; 
d) the suitability of the site in land use terms with regard to amenity, the nature of the local 

Page 12



environment and surrounding land uses; 
e) other policies and proposals of the Plan. 
 
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design states that the Council will give favourable 
consideration to proposals which do not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the 
particular character and townscape of the Borough's towns, villages and other settlements. 
Factors to be considered when assessing proposals will include 
a) the external appearance and design of the proposal in relation to its height, scale, density 
and layout; 
b) the relationship of the proposal to the surrounding area;  
c) the choice and use of materials;  
d) access and other design features for the mobility impaired; 
e) the design and appearance of access, parking and service provision; 
f) landscaping, including the use of natural landscape features, and open space provision; 
g)the use of lighting. 
 
H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development - All new residential development will be 
expected to make a positive contribution to the form and quality of the surrounding area.  
Factors to be considered when assessing proposals will include: 
a) the height and roof type of adjacent buildings; 
b) the impact of developments on residential amenity; 
c) the density and character of the surrounding area; 
d) the position and proximity of neighbouring properties; 
e) the materials to be used in proposed developments, especially their colour and texture. 
 
H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development - New residential development will be 
required to demonstrate acceptable standards of layout. Factors to be considered when 
assessing proposals will include: 
a) car parking provision; 
b) access for both vehicles and pedestrians, and provision for public transport; 
c) the  possible need for traffic calming measures; 
d) density; 
e) space about and between dwellings; 
f) landscaping and screening; 
g) protection/provision of trees and hedgerows; 
h) open space/children's play areas; 
i) design for safety and security; 
j) access/facilities for the disabled; 
k) the existence of any public rights of way. 
 
H2/6 - Garden and Backland Development - The Council will not permit proposals which will 
result in the loss of private gardens and backland for infill development unless such 
proposals can be shown not to adversely affect the character and amenity of the area. 
When assessing proposals, special regard will be given to: 
a) the concentration of such development in the surrounding area; 
b) the relative density of the proposal to that of the surrounding area; 
c) the impact on neighbouring properties and the local environment; 
d) access arrangements. 
 
Principle - As reference has been made by some resident's to previous planning decisions 
in 1991 and 1992, it should be noted that the planning applications (see Relevant Planning 
History) were considered in the light of the policies at that time, most notably the Tottington 
Area Local Plan. The Tottington Local Plan was superseded by the current Unitary 
Development Plan in 1997 and more recently The National Planning Policy Framework has 
amended further how Local Planning Authorities view development. 
 
Although the site is considered greenfield, it is not within the Green Belt. Given that the site 
is within the urban area and not within the Green Belt there is a presumption in favour of 
development within the NPPF. The site covers nearly a third of a hectare and located 

Page 13



between existing houses on Victoria Street and Claybank Drive. Given its size and location 
and the fact that the application has not specified numbers, scale or layout of development, 
the principle of residential development is considered to be acceptable and would comply 
with the NPPF and UDP Policy H1/2 Further Housing Development. 
 
Visual amenity and character of area - Without any specific details of what is being built 
on the site, it is impossible to make any detailed assessment of the proposal itself at this 
outline stage. However the site itself is a backland area that currently comprises a sizeable 
piece of greenfield land that is made up of a mix of well maintained garden ground and 
informal areas of rough grassland, trees and shrubs, all of which add to the character of the 
area and give it a sense of space, particularly in relation to the high density terraced houses 
fronting Victoria Street.  
 
Although there are no details, the outline application can be assessed on the impact general 
concept of residential development would likely have on the visual amenity and character of 
the area. In this regard it is considered that a modest residential development, set back at 
an appropriate distance from the terraced properties on Victoria Street may be acceptable. 
It is important to note that the 'indicative plan' submitted with the application, with the large 
two storey houses and a road running along the eastern edge of the site, is not considered 
appropriate in that it would have a seriously detrimental impact on the character of the 
backland area. However, as stated, this is not under consideration at this time.    
 
Residential amenity -  Again, without details regarding numbers, scale and layout, any 
assessment with regard to residential amenity cannot be carried out at this stage. However 
purely based on the size of the site, it is considered that some form of residential 
development could work on the site without serious harm to the residential amenity of 
surrounding residents.  
 
It is considered that the 'indicative plan', showing the access road running along the rear of 
properties on Victoria Street, would give rise to increased noise and disturbance at the rear 
of the terraced properties on Victoria Street from vehicles and general comings and goings 
of residents. Again, the access and layout is not under consideration at this time but 
addressed at the detailed/reserved matters stage.    
 
Ecology -  The site is greenfield and is composed of a mix of formal garden ground and 
informal open grassland/scrub with a number of self-seeded trees. An ecological appraisal, 
from Sensible Ecological Survey Consultants and dated July 2014, has been submitted with 
the application. It concludes that, in terms of overall nature conservation, the site's value is 
assessed as low/negligible. However, it does state that special consideration should also be 
given to potential presence of reptiles, breeding birds and slow worms during site clearance. 
Also, as the houses on Victoria Street are within 10m of the site, the potential disturbance to 
roosting bats may require further surveys to establish risk.  
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit have no objection to the principle of the proposal in terms 
of ecology. Given that no significant ecological constraints were identified and residual 
issues relating to nesting birds and landscaping can be resolved via conditions and further 
surveys, the principle of development on the site is considered to be acceptable in relation 
to ecology. 
 
Trees - Whilst the arboriculturalist, in the report summary identifies the trees as poor quality, 
the tree survey data in Appendix E appears to categorise all but two of them as being in 
'good' physiological condition and most being in 'fair' structural condition. Three trees are 
recommended for removal due to poor form, suppression or dieback.  
 
The trees on the site are not subject to specific protection by TPOs but do add value to the 
site by giving it a degree of landscape maturity and providing habitats for wildlife. Without 
any details relating to layout, the impact on the trees, and wider landscape, cannot be fully 
assessed at this stage.  
 

Page 14



Access and Highways - Whilst details of the proposed access are reserved for future 
approval, the access point from Claybank Drive would, in principle be acceptable. 
Conditions that would be attached to any outline approval will be reported on the 
supplementary report. 
 
Public Right of Way (PROW) - The Public Right of Way (78A) runs east to west from 
Claybank Drive to Turton Road. Subject to the appropriate conditions requiring protection of 
the PROW, it is not considered that this footpath would be detrimentally affected by the 
proposal.  
 
Existing Sewer - United Utilities have stated that a public sewer crosses the site on an 
east-west line from Claybank Drive to Turton Road, close to the northern boundary of the 
site and this would require an access strip width of 6m, (3m either side of the centre line of 
the sewer). However this is an issue that would be addressed at the reserved 
matter/detailed planing stage. Conditions relating to drainage would be attached to any 
approval. 
 
Objections - The planning issues raised by objectors have been addressed in the above 
report. It is noted that a significant number of objections relate to the 'indicative' scheme 
which is not being considered for approval at this stage and therefore cannot be directly 
addressed in detail.  
 
On the basis that the proposal is in outline with all matters reserved for future approval, it is 
considered that a modest form of residential development on the site would be acceptable. 
  
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. Before the development is commenced, the applicant shall submit detailed plans 
and particulars to the Local Planning Authority, and obtain their approval under the 
Town and Country Planning Acts, of the following reserved matters; the layout, 
scale, appearance, access thereto and the landscaping of the site. 
Reason. To ensure the satisfactory development of the site and because this 
application is in outline only. 

 
2. Applications for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than: 

• the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of outline 
planning permission; and 

• that the development to which the permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters 
or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such 
matter to be approved. 

Reason. Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

 
3. This decision relates to Location Plan 1:1250, Existing Site Plan 1050598/01, 

Topographic Survey P15091  and the development shall not be carried out except 
in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 

Page 15



submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 
• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 

Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  
 

 
6. A scheme shall be submitted as part of the 'Layout' at Reserved Matters stage that 

demonstrates that foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 
The approved scheme only shall be implemented.  
Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution pursuant to the NPPF and UDP Policies H2/2 The Layout of New 
Residential Development, EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk, EN7/3 Water 
Pollution and EN7/5 Waste Water management. 
 

 
7. As part of the Reserved Matters for 'Layout', a surface water drainage scheme, 

based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice 
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of how 
the scheme shall be managed after completion) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage 
scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement 
national standards. In the event of surface water draining to the public surface 
water sewer, the pass forward flow rate to the public sewer must be restricted to 
5l/s.  
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution pursuant to policies within the NPPF and 
UDP Policies H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development, EN5/1 New 
Development and Flood Risk, EN7/3 Water Pollution and EN7/5 Waste Water 
management. 
 

 
8. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 

any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist 
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance and written confirmation 
provided that no active bird nests are present which has been agreed in writing by 
the LPA. 

Reason. In order to protect nesting birds pursuant to UDP Policy EN6 
Conservation of the Natural Environment and the NPPF. 
 

 

Page 16



9. The landscaping scheme submitted as part of the Reserved Matters shall be 
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the dwelling(s) is first 
occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged 
or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by 
trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required to be 
planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 
– Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
10. No development or ground works shall take place until a detailed method 

statement for removing or the long-term management / control of Japanese 
knotweed and Himalayan balsam on the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The method statement shall include 
measures that will be used to prevent the spread of Japanese knotweed and 
Himalayan balsam during any operations e.g. mowing, strimming or soil 
movement. It shall also contain measures to ensure that any soils brought to the 
site are free of the seeds / root / stem of any invasive plant listed under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981, as amended. Development shall proceed in 
accordance with the approved method statement. 
Reason - To prevent the spread of Japanese knotweed and Himalayan 
balsam, which are invasive species. Without it, avoidable damage could be caused 
to the nature conservation value of the site contrary to national planning policy as 
set out in National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 109, which requires the 
planning system to aim to conserve and enhance the natural and local 
environment by minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in 
biodiversity where possible and pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policy EN6 
Conservation of the Natural Environment. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 17



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59216

Land at Victoria Street
Tottington

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

FB

Presbytery

22

21

2

12

Hall

31

Parochial

33

St Hilda's

2

67

54
4846

42

R
C

 C
hurch

26

36

14

S
t H

ilda's

43

37

66

56

58

33

45

62
 to

 6
8

31

53to55

33

2 to 12

50 to 60

63

77

99

31

95

75

85

77

10
9

35

11
9

25

29

7

17

44

1

2

4

462

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y
W

O
R

S
L

E
Y

W
O

R
S

L
E

Y

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

HARWOOD CRESCENT

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

TURTON ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

HARWOOD ROAD

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

PRIM
RO

SE BANK

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

CLAYBANK D
RIV

E

H
arw

ood

159.4m

163.1m

178.3m

1

2 3

4

5

6

Viewpoints

Page 18



59216 

 

Photo 1 

 

 

 

Photo 2

 

 

 

Page 19



59216 

 

 

Photo 3

 

 

Photo 4

 

 

 

Page 20



59216 

 

Photo 5

 

 

Photo 6

 

Page 21



P
age 22



Page 23



Page 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Item   02 

 
Applicant: Mr Kersh 
 
Location: 1/3 Moss Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8DY 

 
Proposal: Change of use from Class A1 (shop) to Class A3 (restaurants & cafes); external 

alterations including new shop front 
 
Application Ref:   59293/Full Target Date:  14/12/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is part of a two storey terrace block of shops within Whitefield District Centre which 
sits at the junction of Bury New Road and Moss Lane. There are glazed shop fronts at the 
ground floor with a rendered section above and the building is flat roofed. Nos.1/3 are 
located to the Moss Lane elevation and have the public footpath running along the frontage 
and an access road which leads around to a private customer car parking area. To the rear 
the site has a connecting first floor bridge, a landing area, attached to a two storey section 
of the building used as an office by the applicant. 
 
To the east side of the car park is a detached residential property whose blank side 
elevation runs along the boundary.  To the rear are residential properties on Nuttall Mews 
and Nuttall Avenue which can be accessed via a footpath off Moss Lane. 
 
The units that are part of this application were previously a hair salon and insurance offices 
occupying the ground and first floor.  The application proposes to combine the two 
premises and a change of use of the ground floor to form a cafe with a new shop front and 
re rendering to the front elevation.  At first floor would be seating areas and toilets and a 
bar to the landing area.  A new window with timber cladding to the connecting bridge is 
proposed facing into the car park and this has already been installed.  
 
In addition to the cafe bar use, it is proposed to hold creative and social activities.  These 
include after school sessions, yoga, book clubs, art and craft sessions and community fund 
raising events.  Further detail is available in a statement provided by the applicant. 
Hours of operation are proposed as:- 
• Monday 7.30am - 3.00pm 
• Tuesday & Wednesday 7.30am - 9.00pm 
• Thursday & Friday 7.30am - 11.30pm 
• Saturday 7.30am - 12.30am 
• Sunday 9.00am - 10.30pm             
 
Relevant Planning History 
59294 - Externally illuminated fascia sign - Withdrawn 02/12/15.  Revised scheme to be 
resubmitted. 
 
Publicity 
30 notification letters were sent on 20/10/15 to addresses at 156, 162, 162A, 162B, 164-176 
& 195 Bury New Road, 2,4,5,7,7A,7C Moss Lane, 1-6 Nuttall Mews, 14,14A,16,18 Nuttall 
Avenue, 1 & 3 Pinfold Lane.  4 responses have been received. 
 
Two objections have been received that do not give an address.  The comments are the 
same from each and could therefore be the same person.  The concerns in summary are:- 
• The application states ample free parking along Moss Lane.  As there are 60m of 

Page 28



double yellow lines customers may park in Nuttall Avenue or Mews and walk through 
the passageway.   

• Parking is an issue in the area and discussions have arisen whether to make it a 
'parking permit' area. 

• Parking issues could be further aggravated by the proposals if as suggested 'some 
removable seating in summer' reduces the car parking spaces.   

• Concerns regarding extra noise next to a quiet residential area.  It could continue into 
the early hours if they are serving to 00.30. 

• Likely to be an increase in litter created in the area.     
 
166 Bury New Road generally support improvement of the building and interiors but object 
with the following concerns in summary :- 
• The proposed elevations indicate planting in the car park which would take up space 

and be a hazard to vehicles. 
• Existing elevations show rubbish piled up which is not theirs and should be cleared for 

their staff and van access. 
• Seating in the outside car park would be unsuitable and unsafe and customers need 

spaces to visit businesses. 
• The widening of the step at the back would not allow their van access for delivery to 

their back door. 
• The 'OS plans' do not show correct access to their premises via the passageway.   
 
164 Bury New Road has indicated their support via the online neighbour comments on the 
website. 
 
The representees have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection. 
Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) - No comments to make.  
Environmental Health (Commercial Section) - No response received. 
Environmental Health (Pollution Control) - Recommend conditions for the installation of a 
scheme for dispersal of fumes and odours.      
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
S1/3 Shopping in District Centres 
S2/6 Food and Drink 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/8 Shop Fronts 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Policy - The site is located within Whitefield District Centre subject to UDP Policy S1/3 - 

Page 29



Shopping in District Centres, which allows for consideration of proposals provided that they 
do not conflict with the shopping and other policies of the UDP.   
  
UDP Policy S2/6  - Food and Drink is also relevant and indicates criteria to be assessed; 
• amenity of nearby residents, 
• concentration of non-retail uses, 
• parking and servicing, 
• refuse storage  
• impact of flues. 
 
Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and improved community facilities will be 
considered with regard to the following factors: 
• impact upon residential amenity and the local environment; 
• traffic generation and car parking provision; 
• the scale and size of the development; 
• access to shops and other services; 
• the suitability of the chosen location in relation to the community; 
• accessibility by public and private transport; 
• the needs and requirements of the disabled. 
 
The proposed use would see the loss of an A1 use, the former hairdressers.  However the 
district centre runs along a lengthy section of Bury New Road from Elms Square to the 
junction with Bury Old Road.  Within it are a wide variety of uses and the proposed use as 
a cafe/bar would not lead to an over-concentration of A3 uses in the vicinity.  The inclusion 
of activities to be held at the premises would be of benefit to local residents and enhance 
the vitality and viability of the district centre. 
 
The proposal complies with UDP Policies S1/3 - Shopping in District Centres, S2/6  - Food 
and Drink and  CF1/1- Location of New Community Facilities. 
 
Visual amenity - The shop front would be fully glazed at the ground floor with wood effect 
frame and the first floor would have a render finish in a peach or pastel colour.  
To the rear the window to the bar area has been added and is timber clad. 
The alterations are considered acceptable and would provide a refreshed and improved 
appearance of the premises.  The proposal complies with UDP Policy EN1/8 - Shop fronts 
& EN1/2 - Townscape and Built design.  
 
Fumes - Only light cooking is to be carried out initially and no external flue is proposed.  
Should the situation requiring one arise a separate application would need to be submitted.  
 
Residential amenity - The site is within a district centre where there are a variety of uses 
some of which operate into the evening.  In this location, it would be expected for there to 
be a certain level of activity up to the hours as stated in the application.  As such it is not 
considered that the proposed development would give rise to any noise and disturbance to 
a level above which would be expected within the area and in order to control those an 
hours of operation condition is recommended.     
 
Parking and servicing - The block of shops comprising of 164,168 & 1-7 & 7C Moss Lane 
has a private communal car parking area located to the side/rear with 10 spaces.  The 
applicant does anticipate that a large number of customers will travel on foot from the local 
area.  There is on street parking along part of Moss Lane and the site is within a high level 
area of access to public transport. 
As such it is not considered that the proposal requires any additional parking provision.    
Servicing and bin storage would be as existing to the rear.  
 
The design and access statement refers to the possibility of having some removable seating 
in the car park area.  This could have potential for pedestrian and vehicular conflict and the 
applicant has been made aware of this.  As such a condition is recommended to restrict 

Page 30



this.  
 
The proposal complies with UDP Policy S2/6  - Food and Drink. 
 
Access - There would be level access into the premises at the front and a disabled toilet at 
ground floor.  Wheelchair access to the first floor is not feasible however there is seating 
available at the ground floor.  The proposal complies with UDP Policy HT5/1 Access For 
Those with Special Needs.   
 
Response to objections - The issues relating to parking, noise and the use of the car park 
area are addressed in the above report. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest the use would result in an increase in litter in the area. 
The applicant has confirmed there will be no planting in the car park. 
With regard to access and deliveries to the adjacent No.166, the proposed amendment to 
the rear step would not prevent access to the rear and the concerns raised would be a 
matter between the tenants and the landlord/owner.  
  
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered PL01 Revision B, PL02 Revision A, 

PL03 Revision A, PL04 Revision A, PL05 Revision B, PL06 Revision A, PL07 
Revision C and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance 
with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following 

times: 07.30 - 23.30 hrs Monday to Friday, 07.30 - 00.30hrs Saturdays and 09.00 - 
22.30hrs Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential 
accommodation pursuant to Policy S2/6 – Food and Drink of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
4. There shall be no use of the car park as outside seating area without the prior 

written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential 
accommodation and users of the car park  pursuant to Policies S2/6 – Food and 
Drink and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan. 

 
Page 31



5. Details/Samples of the render to be used in the external elevations, together with 
details of the manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is 
commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the 
development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 
 

 
For further information on the application please contact Jane Langan on 0161 253 5316

Page 32



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59293

1/3 Moss Lane
Whitefield

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

C
lub

14a

Shelter

16

14

166
1

1

170

7c

3

6

10

7

178

2

1

4

Charnley Mews

4

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

N
U

TTA
LL M

E
W

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

B
U

R
Y N

EW
 R

O
A

D

108.5m 1

Viewpoints

2

Page 33



59293 

 

Photo 1

 

 

Photo 2

 

Page 34



IQS Limited
The Old Red King

158-162 Bury New Road
Whitefield M45 6AD

0161-767-9862
www.iqsltd.co.uk

Mr. P. Kersh
43 Fletcher Court
Stone Clough
M26 1PZ

IQS LTD
The Old Red King
158-162 Bury New Road
Whitefield M45 6AD

1 & 3 Moss Lane
Whitefield M45 6HG

Elevations as Existing

Planning Issue

1:100 07/10/2015 BD BD

0047/008 PL04 A

IQS

Scale: 1:100

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

A

Scale: 1:100

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

B

Scale: 1:100

EXISTING RIGHT ELEVATION

C

Page 35



1

4

a

1

6

Shelter

1

C
A
F
E

B
A
R
I
S
T
A

D

I
S
.
 
W

.
C

IQS Limited
The Old Red King

158-162 Bury New Road
Whitefield M45 6AD

0161-767-9862
www.iqsltd.co.uk

Mr. P. Kersh
43 Fletcher Court
Stone Clough
M26 1PZ

IQS LTD
The Old Red King
158-162 Bury New Road
Whitefield M45 6AD

1 & 3 Moss Lane
Whitefield M45 6HG

G.F Plans as Proposed

Planning Issue

1:100 08/10/2015 BD BD

0047/008 PL05 B

IQS

Page 36



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item   03 

 
Applicant: Mr Mark Madden 
 
Location: 88 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8AH 

 
Proposal: Demolition of link detached garage and outbuilding and erection of detached dwelling 
 
Application Ref:   59357/Full Target Date:  10/12/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
This application was deferred for a site visit by the previous Planning Control 
Committee. 
 
Description 
The application relates to a residential plot comprising a single detached two storey 
dwellinghouse and garden fronting Hollins Lane.  The site measures 578sqm and has a 
frontage of approximately 18m. The area is residential in character with terraced houses to 
the north and across Hollins Lane to the west. To the rear/east are detached two storey 
houses fronting Chapel Close. To the south are two storey houses fronting Hollins Lane. 
Currently there is no footpath along the frontage of the site. 
 
The application seeks approval to construct a detached two storey 3-bed dwellinghouse on 
the north side of the existing house, over the footprint of the now demolished garage. The 
new house would mirror the existing house in style with a smaller footprint measuring 12m 
by 6m. It would have a single storey lean-to element at the rear and be finished in a render 
to match the existing house. The existing house is currently being renovated. 
 
The proposed access would be centralised and shared by both properties. There would be 
spaces for four cars on the frontage. The scheme also includes the formation of a new 
public footpath along Hollins Lane in front of the site.   
 
Relevant Planning History 
01703/E - Proposed demolition of link detached garage and outbuilding and erection of 
single detached dwelling house - Enquiry completed 24/07/2015 
 
Publicity 
The following 28 neighbours were notified by letter dated 21/10/15.  
73-85, 93-101, 90-100  Hollins Lane, 1-9 Chapel Close, 5-11 Castlebrook Close.  
 
Three representations have been received by occupiers of 94 Hollins Lane, 5 and 7 Chapel 
Close. Objections are summarised: 
• Overlooking and reduction in privacy due to a total of four bedroom windows on the rear 

elevation of the existing and new house. The rear boundary hedge is insufficient 
screening and inappropriate. 

• The proposal represents overdevelopment of the site. 
• The new house is narrow and not in keeping with the area. 
• The design and access statement, in its description of the proposal, does not give a 

correct picture of the site and surroundings. 
• Parking appears to be quite tight at the front and could encourage residents of the 

houses onto the road or the adjacent private car park. 
• There should be a more substantial fence along the side boundary with the car park.  
• Intrusion on security as properties may be rented ou for undisclosed periods. 

Page 37



• Permitted devlopment rights of the existing house to build the rear extension are 
negated. 

 
Those making representations have been notified of the Planning Control Committee. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection. 
Drainage Section - No objection. 
Environmental Health - No objection. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H2/6 Garden and Backland Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN7 Pollution Control 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Policy H1/2 relates to the principle of new residential development outside sites 
identified in the UDP and states that proposals within the urban area, where there is 
available infrastructure and land is suitable in terms of land use and amenity, will be 
acceptable. 
 
In terms of Policy H1/2, the proposal is within the urban area with available infrastructure 
and considered to be acceptable. 
 
Siting, Scale and Design - Policy H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development sets out 
factors to be assessed, including 
• height and roof style, 
• impact on residential amenity, 
• density and character of the locality, 
• position in relation to neighbours and materials to be used. 
 
Policy H2/2 The layout of New Residential Development relates to layout and states that 
proposal should take account of; 
• car parking and access, 
• density, 
• space between dwellings, 
• landscaping, 
 
Policy H2/6 Garden and Backland Development states that proposals that result in the loss 
of garden for infill should be resisted unless it is shown that the development would not 
adversely affect the character and amenity of the area. 
 
The proposed site is considered to be of sufficient size to accommodate the proposed 

Page 38



house without appearing to constitute overdevelopment or be out of character within the 
locality. 
 
In terms of siting and scale, the dwelling, situated in the centre of the plot, would be in line 
with properties along Hollins Lane and no higher than the general roofline. 
 
In terms of appearance, there is a mix of house styles and designs along the road. Whilst 
the properties to the north are terraced, the new house would be viewed with, and reflects 
the design and appearance of the detached properties immediately to the south. The 
proposal is considered to be appropriate and would not be unduly prominent in the 
streetscene.  
 
It is recommended that 'permitted development rights' are removed from the new dwelling 
given that the garden area at the rear is limited and ensure any future development would 
not impact adversely on the character of the area. The proposal is considered to be 
acceptable and complies with UDP Policies H2/1 and H2/2 with regard to its siting and 
design. 
 
Residential amenity -  All the side windows (utility, landing and bathroom) would be 
obscure glazed. Windows on the rear elevation of the new house would face over the rear 
garden and be 10m and 21m from the shared rear boundary and main rear elevation of the 
house to the rear (5 Chapel Close) respectively.  The end terraced house to the north has 
no primary habitable room windows overlooking the site. The separation distances are 
acceptable and as such there are no overlooking issues arising. The proposal is considered 
to be acceptable in terms of residential amenity and complies with UDP Policies H2/1 - The 
Form of Residential Development in this respect.  
 
Parking and Access - The centralised access point, parking and turning area allowing cars 
to enter and leave in forward gear has been revised slightly to increase manoeuvrability, 
would be acceptable. The Council's adopted guidance suggests a maximum of 2 spaces 
per house in new build development and this is adequate parking provision in this location. 
The proposal includes the provision of a new public footway along the frontage which would 
significantly improve pedestrian safety. The proposal complies with UDP Policies H2/2, 
HT2/4 and SPD 11 relating to parking and access. 
 
Servicing - The property would have access to bins down the side of the development. 
 
Contaminated Land - A contaminated land desk top study was submitted with the 
application and there are no objections raised by Environmental Health subject to 
appropriate contaminated land conditions. The proposal is acceptable and complies with 
UDP Policy EN7 Pollution Control. 
 
Drainage and Flood Risk - The site is not within a flood risk zone and if approved the 
house would be connected to the mains foul drains and a sustainable drainage system will 
be required for surface water which will be secured by a condition should the proposal be 
approved. 
 
Objections - Planning related issues raised the objectors have been addressed in the 
above report and amended plans. The issue regarding parking on the adjacent private car 
park is a private matter. The fence along the side boundary with the adjacent car park would 
be renewed as part of the scheme. 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 

Page 39



incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered EP01A, PP01C and PP02C  and the 

development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details/Samples of materials to be used in the external elevations, boundary walls 

and fencing and areas of hardstanding (manufacturer, type/colour, finish and size) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development is commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used 
for the construction of the development. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 
4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
6. Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft 

landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and 
suitability for use on site.  Proposals for contamination testing including testing 
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as 

Page 40



determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and; 
The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory 
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development 
being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
7. All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which 

do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out 
where appropriate:    
 
• Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works 

shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in 
writing; 

 
•  A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each 

stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into 
use. 

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy 
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
8. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995, as subsequently amended, no development shall be 
carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Order, 
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur 
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
9. Development shall not commence until details of surface water drainage aspects 

have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This must 
include an assessment of the potential SuDS options for a surface water drainage 
scheme. The approved drainage scheme shall be implemented and thereafter 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: As no details have been submitted and to reduce the risk of local flooding 
and water pollution by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface 
water disposal pursuant to UDP Policy EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
and EN7/5 Waste Water Management. 

 
10. Before first occupation of the dwellinghouse hereby approved the public footway 

shall reinstated along the frontage of the site to the written satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off-street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety and to maintain the integrity of the adopted highway pursuant to UDP 
Policy H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 41



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59357

88 Hollins Lane
Bury

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

TCB

LB

10

14

6

8

11

2

7

9

1

11

90
88

10 0

31

1

21

25

1

2

73

79

38

1

Beehive Dyeworks

El Sub Sta

77

75

2

93

11
3

122

112

Shelter

85

10
3

1

1a

8

11

15

1

2

37
a

31

35

29

37

M
E
A
D

O
W

C
H

U
R

C
H

CHURCH MEADOW

C
H

A
P

E
L C

LO
S
E

C
A

S
T

L
E

B
R

O
O

K
C

L
O

S
E

SYKES AVENUE

104 .9m

Viewpoints

1

2

3

4

5

Page 42



59357 

 

Photo 1

 

 

Photo 2

 

 

 

 

Page 43



59357 

 

 

Photo 3

 

 

Photo 4

 

 

 

Page 44



59357 

 

 

Photo 5

 

Page 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item   04 

 
Applicant:  Morris Homes Limited 
 
Location: The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury, BL9 8LT 

 
Proposal: Variation of condition no. 2 of planning permisison 56860 (21 no. dwellings) to amend 

the planning layout/position of of plots 15, 16,17, 18 
 

 
Application Ref:   59382/Full Target Date:  24/12/2015 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Description 
The site is  a split level site, with a level plateau near the access from Church Meadow and 
the land slopes steeply towards Haweswater Crescent. The site has planning permission for 
a residential development of 21 dwellings, which was granted in December 2014.  The 
Haweswater Aqueduct passes through the site. The site did contain an office building, which 
has since been demolished and occupants relocated to Bury and Whitefield. There is a car 
park near the access onto Church Meadow and a landscaped area to the west. The site is 
some 2 - 3 metres higher than the residential properties to the north. 
 
The site is bounded by residential properties to all boundaries. 
 
Planning permission was granted in December 2014 for the construction of 21 dwellings. All 
of the dwellings would be detached and would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. 
The site would be accessed from Church Meadow. 
 
The proposed development involves the relocation of plots 15 - 18 by 3 metres to the south 
west. The application has been submitted as the position of the aqueduct was surveyed and 
plotted incorrectly. The proposed access would be unaffected by the proposals. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
56860 - Erection of 21 no. detached dwellings at the Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury. 
Approved with conditions - 19 December 2014. 
 
59224 - Substitution of house types to plots 3,4,11,20 & 21 following grant of planning 
permission ref. 56860 at the Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury. Received - 11 September 
2015. 
This application was presented to Planning Control Committee in October 2015, where 
Members decided to approve the application, subject to the completion of a legal 
agreement.  
 
59242 - Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 56860 for the 
relocation of the access road and plots 12 – 14  2.5 metres away from existing dwellings at 
The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury. Approved - 16 October 2015. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 30 october 2015.  
 
1 letter has been received from the occupiers of 40 Haweswater Crescent, which has raised 
the following issues: 
• There are a number of issues with the consideration of application for this site: 

• There is a second application (59242) , which I have not been notified of 
Page 50



• The documentation states that the previously approved layout is N272/P/PL02 
• The United Utilities response (15/10/2014) states that the development must be 

carried out in accordance with N272/P/PL02 Rev A. 
• It now transpires that the layout approved under application 56860 does not meet the 

requirements of United Utilities. This is the third time that a layout has had to be 
amended to accommodate United Utilities. We are now two years from the date of the 
submission of the original plans without an approved layout that United Utilites consider 
acceptable. 

• The proposed plan (N272/P/PL02 Revision C is severely compromised by the 12 metre 
wide easement. The proposal attempts to place 21 units on a site, which is unsuitable 
for such density and does this by encroachment on the private amenity space of the 
existing Haweswater Crescent residents. 

• No application has been submitted for plots 12, 12A and 14.  
• Plot 15 would be relocated by 3 metres to the west, which further compromises my 

amenity. In addition, the finished floor level would be 1 metre above existing site levels 
and would be 2 metres above the ground floor at NO. 40 Haweswater Crescent, which 
would result in a dominating and oppressive outlook. 

• A new retaining structure would be required on the boundary with plot 15 and there is no 
room to construct this. 

• The gable of plot 15 has overlooking windows and should be set back by at least 7 
metres to prevent loss of privacy. The proposed windows in the gable of plot 15 would 
provide a direct view into my garden, bedrooms, kitchen and lounge. 

• The outlook from No. 40 Haweswater Crescent would be unacceptable and dominated 
by the proposed dwelling leading to an oppressive feeling in all of these rooms.  

• Acknowledge that development is required to address the shortfall in housing numbers, 
but the proposed layout takes no account of the Council's policies, particularly Policy 
H2/1. 

• The latest layout does adversely affect the amenity of existing residents with no proper 
attempt being made to mitigate the impact.  

 
The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections in principle. Further comments to be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Drainage Section - No response. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
United Utilities - No objections. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC2/2 Employment Land and Premises 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 

Page 51



SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy on 20 May 
2013, there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work is continuing on Bury's Local Plan, 
which will bring forward a new statutory housing target. 
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the 
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The principle of residential development on this site was established with the grant of 
planning permission for 21 dwellings in December 2014. The site is located within the urban 
area and in a residential area and would not conflict with the surrounding land uses. The 
site did contain a building and is previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Design and layout - The proposed development involves the relocation of plots 15 - 18 
some 2 metres to the south west. The house type and external appearance would be as 
approved under permission 56860. The proposed dwellings would be constructed from red 
brick with a grey roof tile, which would complement the existing dwellings. Therefore, the 
poposed development would not be unduly prominent within the locality and would be in 
accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon surrounding area - The proposed dwellings would have a side or rear 
garden and have an acceptable level of private amenity space. There would be space within 
the rear or side gardens for bin storage. The proposed boundary treatments would be as 
already approved elsewhere on the site comprising: 
• a 1.8 metre high screen wall to the rear gardens, which are immediately adjacent to the 

access road 
• a 1.8 metre high timber boarded fencing between the remaining rear gardens 
• the boundary to the north of the site would be marked by a 1.2 metre high 3 rail ranch 

type fence.  
The proposed boundary treatments would be acceptable and would not be unduly 
prominent feature within the locality. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be a minimum of 17 metres between the gable of plot 15 and the rear elevation 

Page 52



of No. 40 Haweswater Crescent. Given the difference in levels and the provision of a 
landing window and bathroom window in the gable elevation, there should be a minimum 
aspect of 16 metres. Therefore, the proposed development would comply with the aspect 
standard and would not have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the occupiers 
of No. 40 Haweswater Crescent. 
 
There would be 20 metres between plots 16 - 18 and plots 12, 12A, 14 and 15. There would 
be 13 metres between the rear of plots 16 - 18 and the gable of No. 66 Church Meadow. 
Both of these distances would comply with the aspect standards in SPD6.  
 
All of the relationships within the proposed development would comply with the relevant 
aspect standards. Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact 
upon the amneity of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Haweswater Aquaduct - The proposed development has been redesigned to ensure that 
none of the proposed built development would be located on top of the aqueduct or the 
easements required by United Utilities. United Utilities has no objections to the proposal. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN7/4 and 
EN7/5 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Highways issues - The access to the proposed development would remain as existing and 
would be taken from Church Meadow. The proposed access would have acceptable levels 
of visibility at the junction of the proposed access with Church Meadow. The Traffic Section 
ha no objections to the proposal in principle and further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is  3 spaces per 4 
bed dwelling and 2 spaces per 3 bed dwelling, which equates to 10 spaces.  
 
8 spaces would be provided and all of the 4 dwellings would have access to a garage in 
addition to the parking spaces proposed. As such, the provision of 12 parking spaces would 
comply with the parking standards. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Response to objectors 
• The issues relating to privacy and parking provision have been addressed in the above 

report. 
• The amendments to plots 12, 12A and 14 were approved under application 59242. 

There is no requirement to consult on non material amendment applications where the 
changes are not perceptible outside of the site.  

• The proposed layout has to be amended as the position of the aqueduct and therefore, 
the required easements was not plotted correctly. It is therefore, reasonable to revise 
the scheme and duly consider it. 

• The number of dwellings and the density of the development is the same as previously 
approved, which was considered to be acceptable.The layout maintains and complies 
with adopted policy. 

• United Utilities have no objections to the proposed development, which is based upon 
site plan reference N272/P/PL02 Revision C. 

 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

Page 53



Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered N272/P/LP03, N272/P/PL02 C, 

N272/P/HT/BRE/02, N272/P/HT/BRE/01, N272/P/HTCAP2/01, 
N272/P/HTCAP2/02, N272/P/HTELY/01, N272/P/HTELY/02, N272/P/HT/MOR/01, 
N272/P/HT/MOR/02 and the development shall not be carried out except in 
accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
5. Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft 

landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and 
suitability for use on site.  Proposals for contamination testing including testing 
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as 
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and; 
The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory 
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development 
being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 

Page 54



environment.  
 

6. All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which 
do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out 
where appropriate:    
 
• Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works 

shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in 
writing; 

 
•  A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each 

stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into 
use. 

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy 
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
7. The materials shall be: 

• Ibstock Leicester Weathered Multi 
• Russell Grampian Slate Grey 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 
8. Notwithstanding the submitted plan, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, 

and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The landscaping scheme shall include details 
of the proposed types of planting and distances from the easement. It shall be 
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the building(s) is first 
occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged 
or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by 
trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required to be 
planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
No planting should take place within the easement strip, unless specified on the 
approved landscaping scheme. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the planting in relating to the 
easement and to secure the satisfactory development of the site in the interests of 
visual amenity and to ensure protection of the aqueduct pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and Section 10 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
9. No development shall commence unless or until details of a scheme for the 

disposal of foul and surface water drainage  has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an 
assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water drainage with appropriate 
calculations to support the chosen solution. The approved details shall be  
implemented prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide calculations to support the chosen design 
and to ensure a satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste 
Water Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 

 
10. No development shall commence unless or until a Method Statement for the 

protection of the aqueduct during demolition and construction has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Method Statement 
shall include details of the measures to protect the aqueduct during 
1. The demolition of existing structures,  

Page 55



2. The construction stages of the road/ footways and the residential dwellings. 
The Method Statement must include proposals for reinforcing the crossing points 
along the service roads to ensure they are protected from heavy loads and must 
be in accordance with the United Utilities document 'Standard Conditions for works 
adjacent to pipelines'.  
The demolition and construction works must be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Method Statement. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the protection measures and 
to ensure the protection of the aqueduct and water supply pursuant to Section 10 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
11. Notwithstanding the details indication on approved plan reference N272/P/PL02 

Revision A, no development shall commence unless and until full details of the 
following have been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority: 
• access alterations on Church Meadow incorporating the provision of a footway 

on the easterly side of the former car park access, removal of the existing 
gates, gateposts and appropriate sections of boundary wall in order to form 
pedestrian accesses on both sides of the estate road, demarcation of the limits 
of the adopted highway and all necessary alterations to existing highway 
drainage, street lighting and associated remedial works; 

• access alterations on Haweswater Crescent incorporating the full 
refurbishment of the existing footway abutting the site in order to accommodate 
the reinstatement of the redundant site access opposite No. 21, formation of 
the footway crossings serving Plots 1 -3, 5 & 6 and the sub-station, 
demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway and all necessary alterations 
to existing highway drainage, street lighting and associated remedial works; 

• street lighting scheme for the residential development including any 
alterations/improvements required on Church Meadow and Haweswater 
Crescent in the vicinity of the site; 

• swept path analysis of the proposed estate road to ensure a refuse collection 
vehicle can pass a private car and manoeuvre at the turning head; 

• visibility splays in accordance with the standards in Manual for Streets 
appropriate for a speed of 25mph at the junction of the site access with Church 
Meadow with no obstructions above the height of 0.6m within them; 

• adequate bin collection points/hardstandings located clear of the adopted 
highway agreed with Cleansing Services to serve Plots 4, 7, 8, 10, 11 and 15 - 
17. 

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to the written satisfaction 
of, and to a programme and specification to be agreed with, the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide details and to ensure good highway design 
in the interests of road safety and to maintain the integrity of the adopted highway 
pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
12. A minimum hardstanding of 5.5m measured between the highway boundary and 

any proposed garage doors shall be provided and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors 
are opened and to allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of 
New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
13. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plan reference N272/P/PL02 

Revision A (or similar provision that enables construction traffic to enter and leave 
the site in a forward gear agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall 
be provided before the development is brought into use and shall subsequently be 
maintained free of obstruction at all times. 

Page 56



Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 57



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59382

The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent
Bury

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

GG

62

60

39

32

8

7

11

12

53

2

DTE House

34

44

7364

71

42

67

67

65

66

81

134

57

59
142

43

131

11

12
5

75

25

1

2

148

71
4

1 0

The

152

6

1

68

Mount

2

1

2

57

1

9

3

1

37

51

4

24

45

22

2

6

15

12

35

29

Issues

El Sub Sta

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE

BROOK CLOSE
BROOK CLOSEWHITTLE

WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLEWHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE
WHITTLE

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

M
EA

D
O

W

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

H
A

W
E

S
W

A
TE

R
 C

R
E

SC
E

N
T

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

CHURCH

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 C

LO
S

E

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

MERE CLOSE

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

H
O

LL
IN

S
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
L

O
S

E

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

CHURCH MEADOW

107.9m

Viewpoints

1

3

2

Page 58



59382 

 

Photo 1

 

 

Photo 2

 

Page 59



59382 

 

Photo 3

 

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
15 December 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report lists: 
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 

Agenda 
Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

5 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning 
decisions made by the officers of the Council.  
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  
 
That the item be noted. 
 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-None 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
David Marno, Head of Development Management  
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation 
3 Knowsley Place 
Bury BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
  
 
 

Page 64

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk


Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers 
Between  and  16/11/2015 06/12/2015 

Bury East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Change of use of part of the ground floor from Class B1 to Class D1 for use as a childrens 
nursery with associated parking spaces to the rear 

Acorn Business Centre, Fountain Street North, Bury, BL9 7AN 
FUL App. Type: 59012 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 25/11/2015 

New glazed entrance; new rear fire escape; internal alterations and alterations to front access 
ramp; 
Alterations to the Edwin Street Building to provide an internal lift and internal alterations 

Bury Metro Arts Association, Derby Hall, Market Street, Bury, BL9 0BW 
FUL App. Type: 59054 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 25/11/2015 

Listed building consent: New glazed entrance; new rear fire escape; internal alterations and 
alterations to front access ramp 

Bury Metro Arts Association Derby Hall, Market Street, Bury, BL9 0BW 
LBC App. Type: 59055 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/11/2015 

Single storey rear extension 

14 Tinline Street, Bury, BL9 7HG 
FUL App. Type: 59292 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Installation of additional external condenser unit to rear elevation 

Art Picture House, Haymarket Street, Bury, BL9 0AY 
FUL App. Type: 59323 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Listed building consent for installation of additional external condenser unit to rear elevation 

Art Picture House, Haymarket Street, Bury, BL9 0AY 
LBC App. Type: 59324 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 16/11/2015 

Prior notification for proposed change of use from first and second floors office use (Class 
B1(a) ) to 16 no. one and 3 no. two bedroomed apartments (Class C3) 

Acorn Business Centre, Fountain Street North, Bury, BL9 7AN 
P3JPA App. Type: 59332 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 20/11/2015 

Change of use of second floor from offices to residential (HMO) 

2 Cook Street, Bury, BL9 0RP 
FUL App. Type: 59333 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Subdivision of 13 & 15 Broad Street to form two units of accommodation at ground floor and 
basement level; Change of use of 13,15 & 17 Broad Street for uses within classes A1, A2, A3, 
A4 or A5; New shop front and entrance door for 13 Broad Street 

13  - 17 Broad Street, Bury, BL9 0DA 
FUL App. Type: 59366 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 1 of 8 

Page 65



Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Single storey extension at side/rear 

16 Nuttall Street, Bury, BL9 7EW 
FUL App. Type: 59390 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Change of use from non-residential institution (Class D1) to design consultancy office (Class 
B1) 

72-74 Tenters Street, Bury, BL9 0HL 
FUL App. Type: 59417 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Moorside Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 30/11/2015 

New shop front screen with automatic entry and exit doors; Car park alterations to include 
latest spec disabled and parent & child spaces; Vertical cladding to car park elevation and Bell 
Lane elevation. Re-render of damaged panels; Removal of tree adjacent totem sign; New 
window opening formed in  East Elevation. 

Aldi Foodstore, 201 Bell Lane, Bury, BL9 6DF 
FUL App. Type: 59318 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 30/11/2015 

6m high double sided internally illuminated totem sign; 8.2m high double sided internally 
illuminated canopy totem sign; 2.15m high internally illuminated poster display cabinet; 
internally illuminated fascia sign to store 

Aldi Foodstore, 201 Bell Lane, Bury, BL9 6DF 
ADV App. Type: 59319 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Redvales Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Two/single storey extension at side/rear 

33 Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LS 
FUL App. Type: 59372 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

20 Prescot Close, Bury, BL9 9DZ 
FUL App. Type: 59379 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 20/11/2015 

Certificate of lawfulness for existing single storey conservatory (C3 Use) 

Heaton Grove Cottage, Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9QS 
LDCE App. Type: 59470 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury West - Church Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 20/11/2015 

Extension of existing fencing to school boundary and new pedestrian access gate 

Guardian Angels RC Primary School, Leigh Lane, Bury, BL8 2RH 
FUL App. Type: 59300 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 2 of 8 

Page 66



Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Enlargement of existing front dormers to create 1 no. front dormer and addition of pitched roof 
(retrospective) 

12 Edgworth Drive, Bury, BL8 2EB 
FUL App. Type: 59325 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/11/2015 

Single storey extension at side and rear 

1 Clayton Close, Bury, BL8 2TE 
FUL App. Type: 59353 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/11/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

51 Fairy Street, Bury, BL8 2QQ 
FUL App. Type: 59394 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2015 

Extension to existing cafe 

Wellington Barracks, Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PL 
FUL App. Type: 59408 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury West - Elton Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

First floor extension at side and single storey extension at front 

77 Trimingham Drive, Bury, BL8 1EP 
FUL App. Type: 59380 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Removal of existing garage and erection of detached annexe at rear 

7 Purbeck Drive, Bury, BL8 1JG 
FUL App. Type: 59416 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

North Manor Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Addition of first floor above part of existing house with 3 no. dormers and a replacement porch 
(Resubmission of 58654). 

2 Ashborne Drive, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5PD 
FUL App. Type: 59226 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

27 Greenmount Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4HA 
FUL App. Type: 59306 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Refused 17/11/2015 

Prior notification for proposed installation of 230 solar photo-voltaic modules, Suntech 
STP285S-20/Wew (285W). A total of 66kW. 

Holcombe Brook Sport Tennis Club, Hazel Hall Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9UP 
TEL App. Type: 59309 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 3 of 8 

Page 67



Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Single storey extensions to front, side and rear 

13 Crag Avenue, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5NZ 
FUL App. Type: 59320 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Demolition of existing conservatory; Two storey extension at side & single storey extension at 
rear 

17 Aviemore Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9WA 
FUL App. Type: 59326 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2015 

First floor front dormer window 

19 Newton Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DH 
FUL App. Type: 59347 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Raised decking at rear; New windows to side elevation and alterations to existing 
windows/doorways 

200 Railway Street, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5QB 
FUL App. Type: 59419 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Holyrood Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear 

111 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LP 
FUL App. Type: 59367 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not required 27/11/2015 

Prior approval for proposed installation of new Solar PV system (20kW) 

Prestwich Arts College, Heys Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JZ 
TEL App. Type: 59407 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2015 

First floor side extension and garage conversion (amendment to approved application 58429) 

8 Mount Pleasant, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2SD 
FUL App. Type: 59413 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Sedgley Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Single storey extension at side/rear 

149 Rectory Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1DH 
FUL App. Type: 59104 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2015 

Two storey extension at front 

121 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DU 
FUL App. Type: 59148 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 4 of 8 

Page 68



Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

New front porch; extensions to side and rear; addition of basement to rear and creation of new 
vehicular access and gates. 

23 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BN 
FUL App. Type: 59229 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension/outbuildings and erection of new single 
storey rear extension 

57 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FG 
FUL App. Type: 59230 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Addition of two front pitched roof dormers 

14 Bishops Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0HT 
FUL App. Type: 59302 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2015 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear; Raised patio area at rear 

13 Woodhill Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BF 
FUL App. Type: 59317 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Two storey extension at rear and conversion of existing flat roof at rear to pitched 
(resubmission) 

70 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1FN 
FUL App. Type: 59354 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/12/2015 

Two storey extension at rear; dormers to front and side and erection of detached games room 

102 Scholes Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AU 
FUL App. Type: 59359 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2015 

Single storey extension at front, two storey extension at side/rear and single storey extension 
at rear 

13 East Meade, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JJ 
FUL App. Type: 59401 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Two storey side extension and part single part two storey extension at rear and loft conversion 
including a rear flat roof dormer; Front porch (resubmission) 

22 Hartley Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AT 
FUL App. Type: 59409 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required Refused - Ext 19/11/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

7 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BL 
GPDE App. Type: 59463 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - St Mary's Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2015 

Two storey side extension and porch with widening of access and formation of enlarged 
hardstanding to front 

10 Agecroft Road West, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RL 
FUL App. Type: 59154 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 5 of 8 

Page 69



Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Replacement of 10 no. existing window vinyls with new brand graphics window vinyls 

492 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 7AN 
ADV App. Type: 59381 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 23/11/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

48 Scott Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GN 
FUL App. Type: 59393 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 04/12/2015 

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey side extension 

9 The Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1BJ 
LDCP App. Type: 59493 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

21 Heber Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2TG 
FUL App. Type: 59071 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Split Decision 04/12/2015 

A: 1 No. non-illuminated set of 8 poster holders 
B: 1 No. internally illuminated flex face fascia sign 

Dunelm, Green Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 0AE 
ADV App. Type: 59378 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Extension to existing garage 

19 Starling Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4LW 
FUL App. Type: 59440 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - North Ward: 

Lawful Development 04/12/2015 

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey rear extension 

27 Kentsford Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XX 
LDCP App. Type: 59519 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - West Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Internally illuminated double sided 4 m high free standing sign 

D Swerdlow, Lodge Brow, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1AL 
ADV App. Type: 59316 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 27/11/2015 

Prior notification for demolition of 55m high chimney stack 

Apex House, Bolton Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3SS 
DEM App. Type: 59376 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

07/12/2015 Page 6 of 8 

Page 70



Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 20/11/2015 

Variation of condition no. 2 (approved drawings) of planning permission 57286 (first floor 
extension and external stairs to clubhouse) to enclose external stairs 

Tottington Sports Club, Beryl Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3NF 
FUL App. Type: 59342 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2015 

Two storey extension at front 

12 Sherwood Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3NL 
FUL App. Type: 59387 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom Ward: 

Refused 19/11/2015 

Two storey extension at side 

9 Cheviot Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9LL 
FUL App. Type: 59322 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/12/2015 

Loft conversion and rear dormers to second floor (resubmission) 

Flat at 200 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9JE 
FUL App. Type: 59341 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2015 

Two storey side extension; garage conversion and dormer extension to front 

5 Coniston Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YE 
FUL App. Type: 59362 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Erection of raised timber deck at rear 

25 Windermere Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YB 
FUL App. Type: 59368 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Two storey extension at side and and single storey extension at rear 

7 Moorsview, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9FL 
FUL App. Type: 59369 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Loft conversion with front dormer 

14 Heatherside Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9BX 
FUL App. Type: 59422 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Demolition of existing garage and erection of two storey side extension and single storey rear 
extension 

10 Wildwood Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9SF 
FUL App. Type: 59443 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward: 

07/12/2015 Page 7 of 8 

Page 71



 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Single storey extension at rear; First floor extension at front above existing garage 

30 Marle Croft, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7NB 
FUL App. Type: 59374 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2015 

Partial demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erection of single storey 
extension at rear 

9 Heythrop Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7YB 
FUL App. Type: 59395 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Two storey side extension 

1 Bradshaw Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7JE 
FUL App. Type: 59421 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Ward: 

Refused 20/11/2015 

Lawful development certificate for construction and use of existing car park for cars and light 
commercial vehicles only 

Land to rear of Warwick House, Castle Brook Business Park, Hollins Brook Way, Bury, BL9 8QY 
LDCE App. Type: 59331 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 17/11/2015 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear; Porch extension at front 

25 Burndale Drive, Bury, BL9 8EN 
FUL App. Type: 59336 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 17/11/2015 

Single storey extension to granny annexe at rear (resubmission) 

16 Alnwick Drive, Bury, BL9 8BZ 
FUL App. Type: 59340 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2015 

Single storey extensions at side and rear 

4 Glenbeck Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7WN 
FUL App. Type: 59352 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/12/2015 

Internal alterations to form open plan office and boardroom within the existing Total Fitness 
leisure centre and including formation of 2 no. new windows and formation of door in existing 
window opening 

Total Fitness, 1A  Elms Square, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7TA 
FUL App. Type: 59397 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

 71  Total Number of Applications Decided: 

07/12/2015 Page 8 of 8 

Page 72



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
15 December 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING APPEALS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
Planning Appeals:  

- Lodged 
- Determined 

 
 
Enforcement Appeals 

- None to report 
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 
 

Agenda 
Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

6 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



 
Wards Affected: 

 
All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against 
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that 
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.  
 
Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be 
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that 
were upheld. 
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  
 
That the item be noted. 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-  
 
Contact Details:- 
David Marno, Head of Development Management 
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation, 
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury     BL9 0EJ 
Tel: 0161 253 5291  
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

Page 74

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk


 

Planning Appeals Lodged  
 between 16/11/2015 and 06/12/2015 

Proposal 

215 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BL8 2RU Location 

Creation of new vehicular access (retrospective) 

Applicant: 

Appeal lodged: 02/12/2015  

Mr Christian Pickford 

Decision level: DEL 
Recommended Decision: Refuse 

Appeal Type: Written Representations 
Application No.: 59110/FUL 

Proposal 

33 Burrs Lea Close, Bury, BL9 5HT Location 

Two storey extension at side (resubmission) 

Applicant: 

Appeal lodged: 23/11/2015  

Ms Joanne Hinton 

Decision level: DEL 
Recommended Decision: Refuse 

Appeal Type: Written Representations 
Application No.: 59125/FUL 

Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2 

Page 75



 
 

 

See link below for the Appeal Decision: 

https://planning.bury.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=extern
alDocuments&keyVal=_BURY_DCAPR_46874 

 

 

 

 

Planning Appeals Decided  
 between 16/11/2015 and 06/12/2015 

Proposal: 

Fletcher Bank Works, Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0DD Location: 
Construction and operation of an Anaerobic Digestion plant including main 
reception building, biogas holder, associated storage tanks, 2 CHP engines, 
standby flare, service yard, weighbridge and offices, water management lagoon 
and landscaping (resubmission)                                                          
 
 

Applicant: 

Date: 26/11/2015 

Peel Environmental Ltd & Marshalls Mono Ltd 

Decision level: COM 
Recommended Decision: Minded to Approve Appeal type: Public Inquiry 

Application No.: 57118/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed 

Page 76



 1 

 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

 
Agenda   7 
Item   

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
15 DECEMBER 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE: 2014 
REVIEW 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES) 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
CHRIS WILKINSON 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COMMITTEE 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This report is within the public domain  
 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
This report describes the purpose and application of 
the Register of Sites of Biological Importance in 
Bury. It also identifies the latest changes made to 
the Register. In 2014 no new sites were added or 
deleted. Eight existing sites were reviewed, one, 
Elton Reservoir, gained 1.8ha of additional 
grassland habitat, the remainder saw no grade or 
boundary changes.  A revision to the site 
description has occurred at Wood at Bottoms Hall. 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED 
OPTION 

  
It is recommended that Planning Control Committee 
adopts the 2014 update of the Register of Sites of 
Biological Importance for use in development 
planning and management. 
 
Other options (not recommended) are to not adopt 
the updated Register, or to partially adopt the 
updated Register. 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Policies EN6/1 and EN6/2 of the Council’s 
adopted Unitary Development Plan set 
out the Council’s approach to managing 
development affecting existing and future 
SBIs.  

 
Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
The costs of the AGMA Ecology Unit, 
which compiles and updates the SBI 
Register, are funded through existing 
budgets. 

 
Statement by Executive 
Director of Resources: 

 
None 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
 None.  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring 
Officer: 

 
Yes 
The National Planning Policy Framework 
provides that planning policies should 
identify and map sites of importance for 
nature conservation and biodiversity. 
Updating the Register of Sites of 
Biological Importance will help to ensure 
that the Council complies with and its 
approach is where required, compatible 
with national planning guidance. The 
main issues are covered in the reporting.           

 
Wards Affected: 

 
All 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: Mike Owen – Executive 
Director of Resources and Regulation 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Management Board 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Commission Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 3 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Members will be aware that the Borough’s Unitary Development Plan 

identifies a number of Sites of Biological Importance (SBI) that policies 
EN6/1 and EN6/2 seek to protect from harmful development.  The 
wildlife value of sites is however, not static; it may increase or decrease 
as vegetation changes, neighbouring land changes in character, or 
survey information improves.  The UDP policies anticipate this by 
referring to both existing SBIs and those to be designated in the future. 

  
1.2 The Greater Manchester Register of Sites of Biological Importance is 

maintained and updated on behalf of the ten Greater Manchester 
Districts by the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit.  The entries relating to 
Bury are kept by the Head of Planning Policy and Projects. The sites are 
classed as Grade ‘A’ (of regional or county Importance) ‘B’ (of district 
importance) and ‘C’ (of importance within the identified geographical 
locality). 

 
1.3 The Ecology Unit’s Service Level Agreement requires it to re-survey each 

SBI at least every 10 years. It does this incrementally and produces an 
annual review of the sites it has surveyed in the previous year.  The 
2013 review was reported to committee on 28th October 2014. The 2014 
changes are the subject of the current report. 

 
2.0 ISSUES 
 
2.1 Para 117 of the National Planning Policy Framework says that ‘To 

minimise impacts on biodiversity.., planning policies should….identify and 
map….locally designated sites of importance for biodiversity’. Para 118 
says that ‘when determining planning applications,…..if significant harm 
from a development (to biodiversity) cannot be avoided…, adequately 
mitigated, or, as a last resort compensated for, then planning permission 
should be refused.  

 
2.2 Unlike Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), Sites of Biological 

Importance (SBI) do not have statutory protection. However, the 
designation of ‘regional and local sites’ (i.e. SBIs) is promoted (in the 
NPPF and elsewhere) as a planning tool for conserving and enhancing 
biodiversity.  Designation allows identified sites of ecological value to be 
protected from harmful development that requires planning permission. 

 
2.3 The designation of SBIs is an objective and methodical process of 

evaluating sites against set criteria. Bury Council has consistently chosen 
to use the designation as a way of protecting the Borough’s wildlife by 
incorporating SBIs into the planning process.  

 
2.4 A list of changes to the register, a list of current SBIs and a location plan 

are attached to this report. The register has not changed substantially for 
some years. 

 

Page 79



 4 

2.5 An ECIA Initial Screening Assessment is appended to this report. It finds 
that the proposal to adopt the updated SBI Register serves an existing 
policy with minimal implications for equality or cohesion. 

 
3.0 CONCLUSION 
 

The 2014 update of the Greater Manchester Register of Sites of Biological 
Importance describes the current state of the most valuable sites of 
wildlife interest in the Borough. It will assist the Council in making 
decisions, particularly on planning applications, in accordance with 
government guidance, adopted Council policy and good practice. Its 
adoption is therefore recommended. 

 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-  
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (2008) ‘Greater Manchester Sites of Biological 
Importance Selection Guidelines’ 
 
 
Website:- 
http://www.tameside.gov.uk/ecologyunit/sbi 
 
 
 
Contact Details:- 
Chris Wilkinson 
Department of Resources and Regulation 
Planning Policy and Projects 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury 
BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 5269 
Email: c.m.wilkinson@bury.gov.uk 
  

Page 80

http://www.tameside.gov.uk/ecologyunit/sbi
mailto:c.m.wilkinson@bury.gov.uk


 5 

 
 
 
APPENDIX 1:SBI REVIEW 2014 
BURY – DISTRICT SYNOPSIS 
 
 
In the review period January – December 2014 the Ecology Unit visited 8 SBIs 
representing 16% of Bury’s SBIs.     
 
 
During the review period no new sites were added to or deleted from the 
Register.   
 
 
Elton Reservoir gained 1.8ha of additional grassland habitat. 
 
 
The following sites recorded no changes to the site boundary or area, but 
revisions of the site description may have occurred: Wood at Bottoms Hall, 
Chesham Woods, Sailor’s Brow & Spring Water Park, Elton Goyt, Wetlands & 
Meadows near Coggra Fold, Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal and Kirklees 
Brook. 
 
 
Technical gains and losses are often due to the increasing accuracy used to 
draw boundaries and measure areas.  Techniques used include orthorectified 
aerial photographs, which can be overlaid on the GIS system with the OS map 
base.  This enables boundaries to be drawn to the edges of habitats where a 
clearly definable ground feature (e.g. fences, walls, streams etc) is not 
appropriate to use.  In addition site areas are automatically calculated by the 
GIS system and a new OS base was acquired in 2013.  There were no technical 
changes to any sites in Bury in 2014. 
  

Page 81



 6 

APPENDIX 2: FACT SHEET 
 
 

SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE IN BURY  
2014 REVIEW 

 

DISTRICT FACT SHEET (All areas in hectares) 
BURY 

 Net Change 
2013 – 2014 

 1984 2013 2014 No. % 

TOTAL NUMBER OF SBIS 27 50 50 - - 

TOTAL AREA OF SBIS 691.3 923.9 925.7 +1.8 +0.2 

 

TOTAL NUMBER GRADE A 9 19 19 - - 

TOTAL AREA GRADE A 554.4 761.5 763.3 +1.8 +0.2 

 

TOTAL NUMBER GRADE B 10 20 20 - - 

TOTAL AREA GRADE B 65.0 118.1 118.1 - - 

 

TOTAL NUMBER GRADE C 8 11 11 - - 

TOTAL AREA GRADE C 71.9 44.3 44.3 - - 

 

Grid Ref Change in Grade of existing SBI 
2013 2014 

- - - - 
 

Grid Ref New Sites Grade Area 
- - - - 

 

Grid Ref Site Deleted in Part or in Total Grade 
Area 
Lost 

Present 
Total 

- - - - - 
 

Grid Ref Partial Gains Grade 
Area 

Gained 

Present 

Total 
SD788095 Elton Reservoir A 1.8 31.6 
 

Page 82



 7 

Grid Ref Site visited with no change/change to description only 
SD764140 Wood at Bottoms Hall 
SD815123 Chesham Woods 
SD798067 Sailor’s Brow & Spring Water Park 
SD790086 Elton Goyt 
SD765085 Wetlands & Meadows near Coggra Fold 
SD764068

-
SD793096 

Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (East) 

SD782130 Kirklees Brook 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



 8 

APPENDIX 3: 

SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE IN BURY 2014 
DATE LAST SURVEYED 

Site Name Grid ref. Grade District 
Ref. 

Last 
Updated 

Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal 
(East) 

SD764068
- 

SD793096 
A C1 15.8.14 

Bradley Fold SD756086 C C2 27.8.13 
Hawkshaw Brook SD759146 A C3 2.6.11 
Hawkshaw & Boardmans Farms SD756163 A C4 15.9.92 
Shore Top Reservoir SD766063 B C5 24.8.11 
Reservoir & Canal Banks (East)  SD767068 C C6X 23.6.04 
Wetlands & Meadows near Coggra 
Fold SD765085 A C7 17.7.14 

Ponds off Cockey Moor Road SD767104 B C8 17.9.12 
Wood at Bottoms Hall SD764140 B C9 29.4.14 
Wetland around Spenleach Lane SD766156 A C10 10.10.06 
Holcombe Moor SD770178 A C11 4.10.12 
Ainsworth Lodge SD770093 B C12 14.6.12 
Redisher Woods & Holcombe Brook SD767162 A C13 2.6.10 
Ringley Woods (East) SD785045 A C14 8.5.08 
Reservoirs at Chapelfield  SD789062 C C15 23.7.10 
Wetland near Radcliffe SD787078 C C16 8.8.13 
Marl Pits at Black Lane SD781084 A C17 14.6.10 
Withins Reservoir  SD784087 B C18 8.8.13 
Elton Reservoir SD788095 A C19 15.7.14 
Cyrus Ainsworth’s Nurseries and 
Parker’s Lodges  SD782110 B C20 17.9.12 

Meadow above Kirklees Valley  SD780132 B C21X 11.6.04 
Kirklees Brook SD782130 A C22 15.7.14 
Broadhey Wood and Woodhey   SD788151 A C23 1.5.13 
Dick Field Clough SD785173 B C24 2.6.11 
Carr Barn Wood SD789176 C C25 1.5.13 
Phillips Park & North Wood SD799038 A C26 16.8.11 
Sailor’s Brow & Springwater Park SD798067 C C27 17.7.14 
Swan Lodge SD796085 B C28 8.8.09 
Elton Goyt SD790086 B C29 15.8.14 
Lower Hinds SD794096 A C30 8.8.13 
Daisyfield SD791136 B C31 6.5.09 
Flushes at Springside SD791136 B C32 21.8.07 
Gollinrod Wood SD798153 A C33 1.5.13 
Crow Lumb Wood SD791161 C C34 1.5.13 
Edgars Field SD799166 C C35X 15.8.08 
Prestwich Clough SD807034 A C36 24.8.11 
Lodges at Shuttleworth SD806177 C C37X 24.2.99 
Parr Brook SD815074 C C38 2.7.09 
Hollins Vale SD818085 B C39 29.6.10 
Gorses Quarry SD811131 B C40 20.5.10 
Baldingstone SD812144 B C41 14.6.12 
Heaton Park Reservoir (West) SD825050 A C42 10.3.10 

Page 84



 9 

APPENDIX 3: 

SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE IN BURY 2014 
DATE LAST SURVEYED 

Site Name Grid ref. Grade District 
Ref. 

Last 
Updated 

Hollins Plantation SD820080 C C43 19.4.12 
Pilsworth Bleach Works  SD822083 C C44X 8.4.03 
Pilsworth SD830084 B C45 9.7.04 
Burrs SD789129 C C46X 2.86 
Grassland near Brandlesholme Old 
Hall Farm SD785128 B C47 26.6.11 

Smethurst & Elbut Woods (West) SD837115 C C48 26.8.10 
Spen Moor Ponds SD783094 B C49 24.6.11 
Rhodes Farm Sewage Works SD785039 A C50 13.6.06 
Barracks Lodge SD784103 A C51 23.7.10 
Cockey Wood Pasture & Marsh SD772109 B C52 17.9.12 
Starling Road Reservoir SD773098 C C53 17.9.12 
Nuttall Farm Pasture SD793160 B C54 19.6.03 
Townside Pond SD805103 B C55 24.6.11 
Chesham Woods SD815123 C C56 29.4.14 
 
X = Deleted Site 
 
 

Page 85



 10 

APPENDIX 4: SBI LOCATION MAP 

 
 

Page 86



 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
MEETING: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
15th DECEMBER 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING OUTCOMES REPORT 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO – DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
NONE  
 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain  
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report provides summary on the visits undertaken and 
analysis provided by Members on the outcomes tour 
undertaken on 13th August 2015.  
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED 
OPTION 

  
The Committee is recommended to note the report. 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy Framework? 
N/A  

 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
N/A 

 
Statement by Director of Finance and 
E-Government: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
 No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 

 
Are there any legal implications? 

 
N/A  

 
 

 

 
REPORT FOR NOTING 

 Agenda 
Item            8 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 2 

 
Staffing/ICT/Property:  

 
N/A 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
ALL 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Management Board 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Commission Executive Committee Council 
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report presents a brief analysis of the views of the members of the Planning 

Control Committee who, as part of the on-going training programme, undertook an 
outcomes visit to a number of sites in the Borough where development had been 
implemented. 

  
1.2 In all, eight sites were visited and each site was scored on the basis of perceived 

quality of the decision, implementation and an overall general assessment of the 
scheme. 
 

1.3 The outcomes tour is an annual assessment programme and training initiative to 
enable both Members and Officers to visit sites upon completion and to provide a 
view upon the success of the development assessed against policy, the 
surrounding environment and context and to determine any lessons that could be 
learned in future proposals. 

 
1.4 This year, the visits took place on 13th August 2015 and a total of 9 sites were 

visited. Six Planning Control Councillors attended the tour this year together with a 
number of officers. A standardised questionnaire was devised to enable 
marking/scoring to take place and to enable strengths and weaknesses of individual 
developments to be identified.  

 
 
2.0 SITES VISITED AND ANALYSIS 
 
2.1 The sites inspected by Members were: 

• Mercedes Benz, Manchester Road, Bury 
• Clough Saw Mills, Prestwich 
• Radcliffe Swimming Baths 
• Bury Enterprise Centre, Bury 
• Scobell Street, Tottington 
• Land at Wesley Street, Tottington 
• Hazelhurst, Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom 
• The Irwell Brewery, Square Street, Ramsbottom 

Page 88



 3 

• Park Chapel Manchester Road, Shuttleworth 
 

Each of the sites were considered on the basis of - 
• Visual Amenity – Scale, mass, appearance and quality of finish 
• Landscaping, trees and ecology 
• Relationship to neighbours 
• Highways issues – access and parking 
• Regeneration 
• Environmental Impacts – landscaping, trees, crime & security 
• Overall assessment 

 
 
 

1. Mercedes Benz, Manchester Road, Bury 
 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass     2 8 4   58/70 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance       3 11   67/70 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1       8 5 1 57/65 
Crime and Security       8 6   62/70 
Neighbours   1 4 7 1 1 47/65 
Highways   2 3 6 3   52/70 
Regeneration     3 5 6   59/70 
Overall View       7 7   63/70 

       

465/550 
 
84.5% 

 
Overall a well-received scheme, reflecting that the site had stood vacant for a number of 
years and has, through its redevelopment, brought a well designed building that sits within 
the area appropriately. 
 
There have been issues centring on parking problems but the impact upon neighbours 
from the development itself is generally of a minimal level. 

Page 89



 4 

 
2. Clough Saw Mills, Prestwich 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass       7 7   63/70 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance       4 9 1 61/65 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1     3 6 2 3 43/55 
Crime and Security     1 7 5 1 56/65 
Neighbours   1 3 9 1   52/70 
Highways     1 7 6   61/70 
Regeneration       3 11   67/70 
Overall View     1 5 8   63/70 

       

466/535 
 
87% 

 
Overall a well-received scheme, reflecting that the site had stood vacant for a number of 
years and prior to that also had busy manufacturing use on the land which created 
difficulties between the land owner and neighbours. Views expressed show that through 
its redevelopment brought a more than satisfactory scheme regenerating the site 
appropriately without significant impact upon neighbours. 
 
 
 

3. Radcliffe Swimming Baths 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A  
Total 
Score 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass   2 4 6 2   50/70 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance 2 1 10 1     38/70 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1   3 4 1   6 22/40 
Crime and Security   1 3 8 1 1 48/65 
Neighbours     1 6 4 3 47/55 
Highways     2 6 4 2 50/60 
Regeneration   1 2 6 3 2 47/60 
Overall View     3 6 4 1 53/65 

       

355/485 
 
73% 

 
The strongest reflection to take on this table is that the site is generally  satisfactory with 
little neighbour impact, a safe site and good regeneration benefits. There were a number 
of average scores given in terms of visual amenity and landscaping, which could give the 
development an area to focus upon. 
 
 
 

Page 90



 5 

4. Bury Enterprise Centre 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score * 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass 1 1 3 4 3   43/60 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance 1 1 6 2 2   39/60 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1   2 2 5 1 2 35/50 
Crime and Security       5 5 2 45/50 
Neighbours 1   1 4 3 3 35/45 
Highways     2 7 2 1 44/55 
Regeneration     4 4 4   48/60 
Overall View 1   7 1 3   41/60 

       

330/440 
 
75% 
 

* Two questionnaires not completed  
       

Most views of the design and amenity of the development were satisfactory to very good, 
with a couple having difficulty with the modern design and appearance. The site was 
considered to be a safe one with limited impact upon neighbours. 
 
 
 

5. Scobell Street Tottington 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score* 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass       5 7   55/60 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance   1 2 1 8   52/60 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1     2 5 4 1 46/55 
Crime and Security     2 6 3 1 45/55 
Neighbours     1 7 4   51/60 
Highways     1 6 5   52/60 
Regeneration       6 4 2 44/50 
Overall View     1 5 6   53/60 

       

398/460 
 
86.5% 

*Two Questionnaires not completed 
       

A highly scoring development with the main scores concentrated in the good to very good 
category. The scheme’s contribution to the regeneration of the area is recognised and a 
few  considering that the design, landscaping and impact upon the neighbours as 
satisfactory only. However, the vast majority of scores reflect a high degree of acceptance 
of the scheme. 
 
 

Page 91



 6 

6. Land at Wesley Street, Tottington 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score * 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass       2 10   58/60 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance     3 2 7   52/60 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1     2 3 6 1 48/55 
Crime and Security     1 4 6 1 49/55 
Neighbours       4 8   56/60 
Highways       4 8   56/60 
Regeneration       2 9 1 53/55 
Overall View       2 10   58/60 

       

430/465 
 
92.4% 

*Two Questionnaires not completed 
       

A highly scoring development with the majority of scores within the good and very good 
categories. Design was strongly supported and impact upon neighbours, crime and 
security, highways and regeneration being particularly noticeable. 
 
 

7. Hazelhurst, Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score* 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass       1 10   54/55 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance       2 9   53/55 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1     1 5 5   48/55 
Crime and Security       3 6 2 42/45 
Neighbours       3 8   52/55 
Highways       5 6   50/55 
Regeneration       1 9 1 49/50 
Overall View       1 10   54/55 

       

402/425 
 
94.5% 

*Three Questionnaires not completed 
       

A particularly high scoring site and being the top score of the day. The design standing out 
together with regeneration benefits of the scheme. Highways considerations were thought 
to be good and landscaping between good and very good. This is particularly important 
given that the site contains a number of mature trees, which the development worked 
around.  
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 7 

8. Irwell Works Brewery 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score* 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass     3 7 2   47/60 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance     5 4 3   46/60 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1     2 3 1 6 23/30 
Crime and Security     1 3 4 4 35/40 
Neighbours       3 7 2 47/50 
Highways   1   4 2 5 28/35 
Regeneration       3 5 4 37/40 
Overall View     1 6 4 1 47/55 

       

310/370 
 
83.7% 

*Two Questionnaires not completed 
       

A town centre conservation area site which received an overall good score. The site 
represents a series of on-going development improvements over the years and is still 
planning more improvements.  The regeneration of the site is seen as a particularly 
important factor and the relationship between the use, its location and juxtaposition to 
neighbours being important, which overall, Members considered being very good. 
 
 
 

9. Park Chapel, Manchester Road, Shuttleworth 

  1 2 3 4 5 N/A 
Total 
Score* 

Visual Amenity/ 
Scale/mass       3 8   52/55 
Visual Amenity/Design 
/appearance     1 4 6   49/55 
Landscaping, Trees, 
Ecology 1       3 7 1 47/50 
Crime and Security       4 7   51/55 
Neighbours       2 7 2 43/45 
Highways     1 4 6   49/55 
Regeneration       4 7   51/55 
Overall View       4 7   51/55 

       

393/425 
 
92.4% 

*Three Questionnaires not completed 
 
 

      
The site is a conversion from a chapel to residential, which has characteristics of its 
former use retained within the building and in the surrounding curtilage. The scores reflect 
a well received scheme and overall scoring it as very good, with the design and 
landscaping of the site being honest to the original building and which has been retained. 
Security was considered to be well achieved and the regeneration benefits of retaining 
and working with this heritage asset seen as highly important. 

Page 93



 8 

 
 
3.0 CONCLUSION 
3.1 The outcomes tour provides an insight to schemes that have been considered by 

Members, how they have been carried out and their integration into the surrounding 
context in which they are located. 

 
3.2 The scoring of the sites visited this year demonstrates that development is of a very 

good standard, shows successful implementation and integration. The site of least 
success was still of a high standard but shows from the feedback that the site is on-
going and whilst operational can still contribute positively to the area through some 
landscaping and general improvements to lift ‘kerb appeal’. 

 
3.3 Overall the valuable lessons learnt from the exercise are that the issues assessed 

by officers and duly considered in the respective reports demonstrate that the 
planning process is working well and that feedback from this exercise continues to 
guide how future proposals are considered. 

 
 
List of Background Papers: - The respective planning applications 
 
Contact Details:- 
David Marno | Head of Development Management | Planning Services | 
Department for Resources and Regulation | Bury Council 
3 Knowsley Place, Duke Street, Bury BL9 0EJ 
 
Office: +44 (0) 161 253 5291 
Fax: 0161 253 7373 
Email to:       d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
Web site:       www.bury.gov.uk/e-planning  
 

Page 94

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk
http://www.bury.gov.uk/e-planning

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November, 2015
	4 Planning Applications
	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals
	7 Sites of Biological Importance
	SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE IN BURY 
	2014 REVIEW
	BURY
	TOTAL NUMBER OF SBIS
	TOTAL AREA OF SBIS
	TOTAL NUMBER GRADE A
	TOTAL AREA GRADE A
	TOTAL NUMBER GRADE B
	TOTAL AREA GRADE B
	TOTAL NUMBER GRADE C
	TOTAL AREA GRADE C
	Grid Ref
	Change in Grade of existing SBI
	Grid Ref
	New Sites
	Grade
	Area

	Grid Ref
	Site Deleted in Part or in Total
	Grade

	Grid Ref
	Partial Gains
	Grade
	Gained
	Total

	Grid Ref
	Site visited with no change/change to description only

	APPENDIX 3:
	SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE IN BURY 2014
	DATE LAST SURVEYED

	Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (East)
	A
	C
	Bradley Fold
	A
	Hawkshaw Brook
	A
	Hawkshaw & Boardmans Farms
	B
	Shore Top Reservoir
	C
	Reservoir & Canal Banks (East) 
	Wetlands & Meadows near Coggra Fold
	A
	B
	Ponds off Cockey Moor Road
	B
	Wood at Bottoms Hall
	A
	Wetland around Spenleach Lane
	A
	Holcombe Moor
	B
	Ainsworth Lodge
	A
	Redisher Woods & Holcombe Brook
	A
	Ringley Woods (East)
	C
	Reservoirs at Chapelfield 
	C
	Wetland near Radcliffe
	A
	Marl Pits at Black Lane
	B
	Withins Reservoir 
	A
	Elton Reservoir
	Cyrus Ainsworth’s Nurseries and Parker’s Lodges 
	B
	B
	Meadow above Kirklees Valley 
	A
	Kirklees Brook
	A
	Broadhey Wood and Woodhey  
	B
	Dick Field Clough
	C
	Carr Barn Wood
	A
	Phillips Park & North Wood
	C
	Sailor’s Brow & Springwater Park
	B
	Swan Lodge
	B
	Elton Goyt
	A
	Lower Hinds
	B
	Daisyfield
	B
	Flushes at Springside
	A
	Gollinrod Wood
	C
	Crow Lumb Wood
	C
	Edgars Field
	A
	Prestwich Clough
	C
	Lodges at Shuttleworth
	C
	Parr Brook
	B
	Hollins Vale
	B
	Gorses Quarry
	B
	Baldingstone
	A
	Heaton Park Reservoir (West)
	Grade
	Site Name
	C
	Hollins Plantation
	C
	Pilsworth Bleach Works 
	B
	Pilsworth
	C
	Burrs
	Grassland near Brandlesholme Old Hall Farm
	B
	C
	Smethurst & Elbut Woods (West)
	B
	Spen Moor Ponds
	A
	Rhodes Farm Sewage Works
	A
	Barracks Lodge
	B
	Cockey Wood Pasture & Marsh
	C
	Starling Road Reservoir
	B
	Nuttall Farm Pasture
	B
	Townside Pond
	C
	Chesham Woods

	8 Planning Outcomes Report



